
A
G

EN
D

A
 

O
U

TSTA
N

D
IN

G
 

A
C

TIO
N

S
STR

A
TEG

IC
 

M
A

T
TER

S
C

A
SE R

EP
O

R
TS 

FR
O

M
 P

SC

 

 

 
 

 

MINUTES Meeting date: Tuesday 30 July 2024  

 
IN ATTENDANCE ONLINE  
Members: 

• Suzanne Vestri (Convener) 

• Ashleigh Dunn  

• Helen Donaldson 

• Lezley Stewart 

• Morag Ferguson 

Executive Team Members: 

• Lorna Johnston (Executive Director) 
 
 

ITEM CONTENT ACTION 

STANDING ITEMS 

1.  WELCOME 
Members welcomed Mrs Ferguson to her first meeting.  
 

APOLOGIES 
Apologies were received from Richard Wilson, Case Manager. 
 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
No declarations of interest were made. 
 

 
  

2.  MATTERS ARISING 
Members noted all matters arising from their last meeting, on 28 May 2024, were either 
complete or due to be discussed as part of the agenda. 
 

 
 
 

CONSENT ITEMS 

3.  DRAFT MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
Members reviewed and subject to the correction of two typographical errors, approved the 
minute of the meeting on 28 May 2024.   
 

 
 

STRATEGIC MATTERS 

4.  PROMOTING THE ETHICAL STANDARDS FRAMEWORK AND UPDATE ON OUTREACH WORK 
Members noted the outreach work undertaken since the last meeting. Members noted, in 

particular, that: 

• The Executive Director presented a session on identifying and managing conflicts of 

interest to the Scottish Human Rights Commission on 1 July 2024. 

• The Executive Director and Ms Donaldson had presented on the Model Code to members 

of NHS Grampian at an in-person board seminar day in Aberdeen on 11 July 2024.  

• The Executive Director and Case Manager have been asked to present on the Model 

Code to the NHS Board Secretaries Group on 6 August 2024. 

• The Standards Commission has been asked to present on the Councillors’ Code to 

elected members of Perth and Kinross Council on 2 September 2024. Members agreed 

that the Executive Director and Ms Donaldson would cover the event. 

• The Standards Commission and Improvement Service had agreed to conduct a joint 

webinar on confidentiality for elected members, likely to be held in October 2024. 

 

 

BUSINESS MATTERS 



2 
 

5.  ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS FOR 2023/24 
Members reviewed the draft Annual Accounts for 2023/24, the contents of the proposed 
external audit report, and the terms of the draft ISA 580 management response letter.   
Members were pleased to note that the external auditors (Audit Scotland) had reported that: 

• the financial statements gave a true and fair view and were properly prepared in 
accordance with the financial reporting framework; 

• expenditure and income were regular and in accordance with applicable enactments and 
guidance; and 

• the audited part of the remuneration and staff report, performance report and 
governance statement were all consistent with the financial statements and properly 
prepared in accordance with the relevant legislation and directions made by Scottish 
Ministers. 

 
Members approved the Annual Accounts and confirmed that the Executive Director was to 
proceed to sign both the Accounts and ISA 580 letter, before submitting them to Audit Scotland 
for their consideration and final approval. Members thanked staff for their work in producing 
the required information for the auditors promptly. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive 
Director 

6.  AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE MEETING  
Members noted the verbal report provided by Ms Donaldson, Chair of the Audit & Risk 
Committee, of the meeting held on 23 July 2024.  Members reviewed the terms of the Annual 
Audit Report from Audit Scotland and the Annual Assurance Statement from the Internal 
Auditor. Members were pleased to note that satisfactory assurances had been offered from 
both, with regard to the Standards Commission’s systems of internal control.   
 
Members further noted, and advised that they supported, the recommendations made by the 
Committee in respect of updates to the current risk scores on the Risk Register for 2024/25. 
Members asked the Executive Team to update the Risk Register accordingly. 
 
Members further reviewed the Internal Auditor’s report on the Standards Commission’s 
process for the training and induction of new Commission Members. Members noted a few 
minor recommendations had been made, including that the Standards Commission should 
endeavour to hold the induction meetings in person and should record the dates when training 
had been delivered. Members noted that the Executive Team had accepted these 
recommendations and intended to update the induction plan accordingly, before the next new 
appointment was made. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive 
Team 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive 
Team 
 

7.  REPORT ON EXPENDITURE AGAINST BUDGET - QUARTER ONE 2024/25 
Members noted the report on expenditure in quarter one against budget. Members noted that 
the Standards Commission based its annual budget submission on its staffing and associated 
costs, business plan activities and funding for a projected number of Hearings. As expenditure 
associated with Hearings depends on a variety of factors, some of which are wholly outwith the 
Standards Commission’s control, it was not possible to forecast the resources required with any 
degree of certainty.   
 
Members noted that, at 30 June 2024, year to date expenditure was some £6,000 under the 
budget set aside for the first quarter. Members noted, however, that it was expected that the 
small underspend would unwind shortly, with a number of Hearings scheduled to be held in 
quarter two. 
 

 
 
 

8.  REVIEW OF BUSINESS PLAN - QUARTER ONE 2024/25 
Members reviewed the progress made in quarter one against the actions outlined in the 
Business Plan for 2024/25. Members were pleased to note the majority of tasks identified for 
quarter one had been completed or progressed and thanked staff for their work during what 
had been a busy period. 
 

 
 



3 
 

9.  INFORMING RESPONDENTS OF COMPLAINTS AT ELIGIBILITY STAGE 
Members noted that the ESC advises Respondents about complaints made against them only 
after the complaint is accepted or rejected at the admissibility stage. Members noted that the 
Executive Team had previously raised its concerns about this approach with the ESC, following 
a case where a Respondent was accused of having failed to register an interest timeously. The 
Executive Team noted, in that case, that if the Respondent had been advised of the complaint 
against her at an earlier stage, she may have been able to avoid or mitigate the breach of the 
Code.  
 
Members noted, however, that the ESC was concerned about notifying Respondents at an 
earlier state as the statutory requirement to maintain confidentiality only concerned the 
investigation stage. In addition, the ESC considered earlier notification could result in: 

• Respondents deleting or tampering with evidence or contacting potential witnesses; 

• more “tit-for-tat” retaliatory complaints being generated 

• unnecessary alarm/stress/anxiety for Respondents to have a complaint hanging over 
them; and 

• more work for his office in keeping parties updated.  
 
Members noted that the Executive Team remained concerned about this issue, especially in the 
light of the lengthy assessment period for determination of the eligibility of complaints at the 
ESC’s office. While the timeframe for assessment is reducing, the current timescale is noted (on 
the ESC’s website) to be an average of five months.  
 
In light of this timescale, Members agreed that a failure to inform Respondents that a complaint 
about them had been made before a decision on admissibility was taken, could give rise to the 
following issues: 

• The Respondent was not provided with the same opportunity afforded to the Complainer 
and ESC to capture or retain evidence;  

• The Respondent was not given an early opportunity to rectify or mitigate the alleged 
breach (or avoid any further breach) by, for example, updating their Register of Interests 
or proffering an apology; 

• A lack of transparency and openness in respect of the process; and 

• The loss of an opportunity to dispose quickly of spurious, vexatious or baseless complaints 
if a Respondent was able to provide evidence to show that a complaint would not meet 
the eligibility criteria at the outset.  

 
Members noted that while it may be the case that advising Respondents at the outset of a 
complaint could create some extra work for the ESC’s office, it was not considered this would 
necessarily be substantial or onerous, given a short template email could be used to outline the 
next steps and expected timescales.  
 
Members noted that advising Respondents of complaints at the outset could prolong the length 
of time that a complaint “hangs over” them which, in turn could lead to increased stress or 
anxiety. Members noted, however, that it was arguable that it might be preferrable for them 
to know about a complaint as soon as possible rather than have the Complainer (who could of 
course be a councillor colleague, or a council officer) and others (including members of the 
press) know about it and potentially be discussing it behind their back or even disclosing it to 
the media. Indeed, as noted above, it could shorten the process if a Respondent was able to 
produce evidence to disprove a complaint or demonstrate it to be ineligible. 
 
Members noted that the ESC had indicated he would be willing to seek the views of COSLA on 
the issue. Members therefore agreed to write to the ESC to ask him to do so, and to request an 
update on the progress being made to reduce the average time taken to assess the eligibility of 
complaints.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Members 
 
 
 

CASES UPDATE 



4 
 

10.  REPORTS FROM THE ESC & SECTION 14 LETTERS 
(a) LA/EA/3904: Members noted that the ESC had sent a draft breach report to an East Ayrshire 
Councillor under Section 14 of the Ethical Standards in Public Life etc. (Scotland) Act 2000. 
 
(b) LA/AB/3925: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report 
received from the ESC about an Argyll and Bute councillor. 
 
(c) LA/G/3872: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report 
received from the ESC about a Glasgow City councillor. 
 
(d) LA/G/3992: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report 
received from the ESC about two Glasgow City councillors. 
 
(e) LA/R/3914: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report 
received from the ESC about a Renfrewshire councillor. 
 
(f) LA/AN/3884: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report 
received from the ESC about an Angus councillor. 

 
(g) LA/NL/3979: Members noted that the ESC had sent a draft breach report to a North 

Lanarkshire Councillor under Section 14 of the Ethical Standards in Public Life etc. (Scotland) 

Act 2000. 

 

(h) LA/H/3969: Members noted that the ESC had sent a draft breach report to a Highland 
Councillor under Section 14 of the Ethical Standards in Public Life etc. (Scotland) Act 2000. 

 

(i) LA/NL/3921: Members noted that the ESC had sent a draft breach report to a North 
Lanarkshire Councillor under Section 14 of the Ethical Standards in Public Life etc. (Scotland) 
Act 2000. 

 

(j) LA/AB/3996: Members noted that the ESC had sent a draft breach report to an Argyll and 
Bute Councillor under Section 14 of the Ethical Standards in Public Life etc. (Scotland) Act 2000. 

 

(k) LA/E/3993a: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report 

received from the ESC about a City of Edinburgh councillor. 

 

(l) LA/E/3993b:  Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report 

received from the ESC about a City of Edinburgh councillor. 

 

(m)LA/G/4047: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report 
received from the ESC about a Glasgow City councillor. 
 

 

11.  CASES 
(a) LA/As/3958: Members noted that a Hearing was held online on 4 June 2024. The 
Respondent was found to have breached the Councillors’ Code and had been suspended. 
 
(b) LA/G/3919: Members noted that a Hearing had been held on 29 July 2024 at the City 
Chambers, Glasgow. The Respondent was found, on the face of it, to have breached the respect 
provisions in the Councillors’ Code. It was found, nevertheless, that a restriction on the 
Respondent’s right to freedom of expression, that a formal finding of breach and imposition of 
a sanction would entail, could not be justified, 
 
(c) LA/S/3867: Members noted that a Hearing was scheduled to take place on 7 August 2024 
at the Council Chambers, Stirling.  

 

 



5 
 

(d) LA/NL/3947: Members noted that a Hearing was scheduled to take place on 14 August 2024 
at the Sir John Wilson Town Hall, Airdrie. 

 

(e) LA/Fa/3929: Members noted that an online Hearing was scheduled to take place on 4 
September 2024. 

 

(f) LA/EA/3904: Members noted that an online Hearing was scheduled to take place on 11 
September 2024. 
 
(g) LA/I/3764: Members noted that Inverclyde Council had confirmed that it had formally 
considered a decision the Standards Commission made at a Hearing held on 10 April 2024. 

 

(h) LA/As/3958: Members noted that Aberdeenshire Council had confirmed that it had formally 
considered a decision the Standards Commission made at a Hearing held on 4 June 2024. 
 

12.  INVESTIGATIONS EXCEEDING 3 MONTHS – INTERIM REPORTS 
(a) LA/NL/3921: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that 
an investigation into a complaint about a North Lanarkshire Councillor had taken more than 
three months to investigate. 
 
(b) LA/AB/3953: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that 
an investigation into a complaint about an Argyll and Bute Councillor had taken more than six 
months to investigate. 

 

(c) LA/NL/3979: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that 
an investigation into a complaint about a North Lanarkshire Councillor had taken more than 
three months to investigate. 

 

(d) LA/NL/3978: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that 
an investigation into a complaint about a North Lanarkshire Councillor had taken more than 
three months to investigate. 

 

(e) LA/AB/3996: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that 
an investigation into a complaint about an Argyll and Bute Councillor had taken more than three 
months to investigate. 

 

(f) LA/E/4004:  Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that 
an investigation into a complaint about a City of Edinburgh Councillor had taken more than 
three months to investigate. 

 

(g) LA/EL/3911: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that 
an investigation into a complaint about an East Lothian Councillor had taken more than three 
months to investigate. 

 

(h) LA/SA/3917: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that 
an investigation into a complaint about a South Ayrshire Councillor had taken more than three 
months to investigate. 

 

(i) LA/Fa/3910:  Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that 
an investigation into a complaint about a Falkirk Councillor had taken more than six months to 
investigate. 

 

 
 
 
 



6 
 

 

(j) LA/AC/3990:  Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that 
an investigation into a complaint about an Aberdeen City Councillor had taken more than three 
months to investigate. 
 

13.  FEEDBACK INCLUDING ANY HEARINGS SURVEY RESPONSES 
(a) Members noted the feedback from a Hearing Survey response received on 10 June 2024. 
(b) Members noted the positive feedback received from the Human Rights Commission on the 
Executive Director’s presentation on 1 July 2024. 
(c) Members noted the positive feedback received from NHS Grampian on Ms Donaldson and 
the Executive Director’s training presentation for Board Members on 11 July 2024. 
 

 
 

ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

14.  PUBLIC RELATIONS COMPANY CONTRACT 
Members noted a verbal progress update provided by the Executive Director on the project to 
secure the services of a replacement public relations company, to assist with work in promoting 
the Ethical Standards Framework. 
 
ANY EMERGING RISKS  
None identified. 
 
AGENDA ITEMS FOR NEXT SCS MEETING 
Members agreed to advise the Executive Director of any items to be included in the agenda for 
discuss at the next meeting. 
 

 
 

15.  2024 DIARY DATES AND WORKPLAN 
Members noted the diary dates and ongoing workplan.  
 
DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
Members noted that the next meeting of the Standards Commission was scheduled to take 
place online, in public, at 10:00 on Tuesday, 24 September 2024.  
 

 
 
 


